
 

 

AGENDA 
Heritage Revitalization Advisory Commission 

Thursday, January 18, 2018 at 5:00 pm 
Council Chambers, City Hall 

 
Mandate:  to undertake heritage and revitalization projects as approved by Council and to advise 
Council on referred heritage matters.  
 
 
1. AGENDA  APPROVAL  
 
2. ADOPTION OF NOVEMBER 16, 2017 MINUTES *  
 
3. COUNCIL REFERRALS/UPDATES 
 
4. SIGN/FAÇADE APPLICATIONS  

a) 422 Esplanade – Ironworks Café & Creperie 
 

5. HERITAGE PROJECT(S) 
a)   Community Heritage Register update  

 
6. NEW BUSINESS/UPDATES 

a)   City of Victoria Tax Incentive Program* 
 
7. NEXT MEETING  

February 15, 2018 – Council Chambers, City Hall 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
*Attachments 

 



 

 

                   MINUTES 
Heritage Revitalization Advisory Commission (HRAC) 

Thursday, November 16, 2017 at 5:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers, City Hall 

 

 
PRESENT: Acting Chair: Rob Johnson; Members: Bernardien Knol, Marina Sacht, Harald 

Cowie; Council Liaison – Councillor Rob Hutchins; Staff Liaison – Angela Davies 
(Planner & Recorder) 

 
REGRETS: Members: Marnie Craig, Bob Darling, Tamara Hutchinson 
 
GUESTS: Corporate Officer - Joanna Winter; Tylor Nelson (CrossFit Ladysmith) 
 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:05 p.m.  
 
1. NOMINATION/ELECTION OF CHAIR 

The Commission decided to postpone the election of the Chair until all nominees for Chair 
are in attendance. 

  
2. AGENDA   
It was moved, seconded and carried that the Agenda of November 16, 2017 be approved with 
the following addition to New Business/Updates: 7(d) Update on Kinsmen Public Washroom 
proposal. 
 
3. MINUTES 
It was moved, seconded and carried that the Minutes of October 19, 2017 be adopted.         
 
4. COUNCIL REFERRALS/UPDATES 

Councillor Hutchins provided a Council update and discussed the Great Places in Canada 
Award for First Avenue.  

 
5. SIGN/FAÇADE APPLICATIONS 

a) CrossFit Ladysmith – 521 First Avenue 

T. Nelson from CrossFit Ladysmith outlined plans for signage. The Commission noted 
that a larger sign would suit the façade and provide more business visibility. 

 
It was moved, seconded and carried that the Heritage Revitalization Advisory Commission 
recommends support for the proposed projecting and window signage for CrossFit Ladysmith at 
521 First Avenue, and recommends that a larger façade sign be considered in the future. 
 

b) 30 Roberts Street 

Members discussed staff recommendations for changes to the façade at 30 Roberts 
Street, and the current development permit guidelines and process. 

 
 



 

 

It was moved, seconded and carried that the Heritage Revitalization Advisory Commission 
recommends to Council that the Town mail heritage conservation and development permit 
information to downtown property owners, and consider providing this information annually. 
 
6. HERITAGE PROJECT(S) 

a) Heritage project timeline 
Staff Liaison A. Davies discussed the Planner’s timeline for Heritage projects. Members 
agreed that the Heritage Inventory discussion be moved to the February HRAC 
meeting. 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS/UPDATES 

a) Heritage Awards 
Members discussed options for heritage awards, and agreed that the awards include a 
variety of contributions to heritage in Ladysmith, such as buildings, sites, monuments, 
parks or trails. 

 
It was moved, seconded and carried that Heritage Revitalization Advisory Commission 
recommends that Council consider the establishment of an annual Heritage Award to recognize 
outstanding contributions to heritage in Ladysmith. 
 

b) Canada 150 
M. Sacht provided a summary of the interview process to date. Members are asked to 
provide recommendations to M. Sacht for individuals to interview.  

 
c) Financial support for heritage buildings 

Members discussed options for financial support for downtown building owners and 
the existing tax exemptions. 

 
It was moved, seconded and carried that the Heritage Revitalization Advisory Commission 
(HRAC) recommend to Council that a copy of the City of Victoria’s bylaw regarding financial 
support for heritage buildings be provided for discussion at the next HRAC meeting. 
 

d) Update on Kinsmen Public Washroom proposal 
A. Davies provided the Council motion from July 17, 2017 regarding the downtown 
washroom. 

 

CS 2017-230 
Moved and seconded: 
That Council: 
1. Support the concept of a public washroom being placed in the alley between the 

buildings at 521 and 531 First Avenue, subject to: 
i. The Kinsmen Club presenting a more complete proposal for the washroom 

and site including: 
 A site/landscape plan and building design with exterior façade details 

respecting ADP and HRAC comments, and the Downtown Development 
Permit Area guidelines; and 

 A review of safety and Crime Prevention through Environmental Design 
(CEPTED) impacts of the proposed washroom and solutions to mitigate 
impacts. 



 

 

ii. Review by Development Services staff and the Heritage Revitalization 
Advisory Commission of the site/landscape plan and building design;  

iii. Approval by Infrastructure Services for the water and sanitary service 
solutions for the proposed washroom. 

iv. The Town following the requirements in Section 40 of the Community Charter 
to commence closure and removal of road dedication to allow a washroom 
building to be located on that portion of the alley. 

 
2. Approve the site/landscape plan and building design and maintenance costs prior to 

installation. 
 
Motion carried. 

 
8. NEXT MEETING 

Thursday, December 21, 2017 at 5:00 p.m., City Hall Council Chambers 
 
9.      ADJOURNMENT 
It was moved, seconded and carried that the meeting be adjourned at 6:50 p.m. 
              
                   
                         ______________________________ 

                                   Acting Chair (R. Johnson) 
 
RECEIVED: 
 
________________________________ 
Corporate Officer (J. Winter) 



444



555



666



777



888



999



101010



111111



121212



131313



 Schedule “C” Bylaw No. 1625  

 

 

 REVITALIZATION TAX EXEMPTION AGREEMENT 

 THIS AGREEMENT dated for reference the __day of _________, 2007 is 

BETWEEN: 

   

  (the “Property Owner”) 

AND: 

  TOWN OF LADYSMITH 
  410 Esplanade, PO Box 220 
  Ladysmith, BC  
  V9G 1A2 

  (the “Town”) 

GIVEN THAT: 

A. The Property Owner is the registered owner in fee simple of lands in the Town of Ladysmith at 
[civic address] legally described as [legal description] (the "Property");  

B. Council has established a revitalization tax exemption program in the downtown area as defined 
as the properties within the boundary of the downtown core.  The  boundary of the revitalization area is 
described as the area between Esplanade Avenue and Second Avenue from Symonds Street to Baden-
Powell Street;  

C. Council’s objective in providing the commercial properties within the boundary of the downtown 
core as a revitalization area is to maintain our heritage theme and encourage investment within the 
Downtown Core without triggering increased taxation; and 

D. The Property Owner proposes to alter an existing improvement on the Property as described in 
Schedule “A” to this Agreement (the “Project”) and has applied to the Town to partake in the 
revitalization tax exemption program in respect of this Project and the Town has agreed to accept the 
Project under the program; 

141414



 

 

2  

 

THIS AGREEMENT is evidence that in consideration of the promises exchanged below, the Property 
Owner and the Town covenant and agree each with the other as follows: 

1. The Project – The Property Owner will use its best efforts to ensure that the Project is 
constructed, maintained, operated and used in a fashion that will be consistent with and will foster the 
objectives of the revitalization tax exemption program, and, without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, the Property Owner covenants to use its best efforts to ensure that the Project will: 

(a)  

(b)  

(c)  

2. Operation and Maintenance of Project – Throughout the term of the Tax Exemption the 
Property Owner must operate, repair and maintain the Project and will keep the Project in a state of good 
repair as a prudent owner would do.   

3. Revitalization Tax Exemption – Subject to fulfillment of the conditions set out in this 
Agreement and in the Bylaw, the Town will issue a revitalization tax exemption certificate (the 
“Certificate”) to the Property Owner entitling the Property Owner to a property tax exemption in respect 
of the Property (the “Tax Exemption”) in an amount and for the calendar years set out in this Agreement.  
The Certificate will be in the form attached to this Agreement as Schedule “B”. 

4. Conditions – The following conditions must be fulfilled before the Town will issue a Certificate 
to the Property Owner: 

(a) The Property Owner must provide the Town with a certificate from the Property Owner’s 
design professional (if applicable), in form and content satisfactory to the Town’s 
Director of Financial Services, certifying the actual cost to construct the completed 
Project. 

(b) All property taxes, business licenses, and user fees must be paid in full before approval in 
principle is given and throughout the term of the agreement. 

(c) The Property Owner must obtain a building permit from the Town for the Project and 
begin construction within one year of approval in principle; 

(d) The Property Owner must complete or cause to be completed construction of the Project 
in a good and workmanlike fashion and in strict accordance with the building permit and 
the plans and specifications attached hereto as Schedule “A” and the Project must be 
inspected by the Town building inspector and certified complete, by no later than two 
years following approval in principle; 

(e) The building alteration must be substantially underway within one year of the tax 
exemption approval in principle and completed within two years; 

151515



 

 

3  

 

(f) The completed Project must substantially satisfy the performance criteria set out in 
Schedule “C” hereto, as determined by the Town’s Manager of Development Services 
and Building Inspector;  

(g) Variations from the original construction plan, bylaw infractions or poor quality work 
may result in rescinding of the tax exemption approval; 

(h) In order to protect the interests of the community, a Heritage Conservation Covenant will 
be requested to be placed on the property to ensure the building’s long term protection 
and use.  (Include if applicable)  Although not required, Heritage designation will also be 
encouraged.  An example of a Heritage Conservation Covenant is attached as Schedule 
“D”;  

(i) Any changes or upgrades made to the structure of the building due to the improvements 
must comply with the BC Building Code and the Town’s Sign and Canopy Bylaw.  A 
complete guide to construction requirements for downtown development is available 
upon request; 

(j) Upon completion of the work, final inspection and confirmation of adherence to all 
bylaws and receipt of all final invoices, registration of a heritage conservation covenant 
(include if applicable) and completion of an exemption agreement, the tax exemption 
bylaw shall be adopted by Council.  An exemption certificate will then be issued and 
forwarded to the BC Assessment Authority.   

5. Calculation of Revitalization Tax Exemption – The amount of the tax exemption shall be equal 
to the Municipal taxes payable on the amount of any increase in the assessed value of improvements on 
the Property, due to the revitalization, between:  

(a) the year before commencement of construction of the Project, and 

(b) the year following the year in which the tax exemption certificate is issued. 

6. Maximum Revitalization Tax Exemption - The maximum municipal tax exemption shall not 
exceed the total cost of the improvements or the increase in municipal taxes payable due to the 
revitalization.   

7. Term of Revitalization Tax Exemption – Subject to early cancellation of the Certificate under 
section 10: 

(a) If the Certificate is issued before October 30th of the current year, then the Tax 
Exemption will be available for the following calendar year; 

161616



 

 

4  

 

(b) The maximum term of the exemption shall be 10 years and shall be calculated as follows: 

Term of exemption = Cost of seismic/building code/sprinkler/façade upgrade                       
(# of years)          Estimated Increase in Municipal Taxes Due to Revitalization 

8. Compliance with Laws – The Property Owner will construct the Project and, at all times during 
the term of the Tax Exemption, use and occupy the Property and the Project in compliance with all 
statutes, laws, regulations and orders of any authority having jurisdiction and, without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, all federal, provincial, or municipal laws or statutes or bylaws, including all 
the rules, regulations, policies, guidelines, criteria or the like made under or pursuant to any such laws. 

9. Effect of Stratafication – If the Property Owner stratafies the Property under the Strata Property 
Act the Tax Exemption shall be prorated among the strata lots in accordance with the unit entitlement of 
each strata lot for:  

(a) The current and each subsequent tax year during the currency of this Agreement if the 
strata plan is accepted for registration at the Land Title Office before May 1; or 

(b) For the next calendar year and each subsequent tax year during the currency of this 
Agreement if the strata plan is accepted for registration at the Land Title Office after May 
1. 

10. Cancellation – The Town may in its discretion cancel the Certificate at any time:  

(a) On the written request of the Property Owner; or  

(b) Effective immediately upon delivery of a notice of cancellation to the Property Owner if 
at any time any of the conditions in the Exemption Certificate or the Exemption 
Agreement are not met.  

11. Repayment of Exempt Taxes - During the term of the tax exemption bylaw, the tax exemption 
amount received by the owner must be repaid to the Town if the building is destroyed or altered without 
proper authorization from the Town (other than by a natural disaster), or if the Heritage Conservation 
Covenant is rescinded by Council at the request of the owner(include if applicable).  In either of these 
circumstances, the exemption certificate will be cancelled.  If such cancellation occurs, the owner of the 
property for which the certificate was issued will remit to the Town an amount equal to the total value of 
the exemption received. 

12. No Refund – For greater certainty, under no circumstances will the Property Owner be entitled 
under or pursuant to this Agreement or under or pursuant to the revitalization tax exemption program to 
any cash credit, any carry forward tax exemption credit or any refund for any property taxes paid. 

13. Notices.  Any notice or other writing required or permitted to be given hereunder or for the 
purposes hereof to any party shall be sufficiently given if delivered by hand or posted on the Property, or 
if sent by prepaid registered mail (Express Post) or if transmitted by facsimile to such party: 

 

 

171717



 

 

5  

 

(i) in the case of a notice to the Town, at: 

THE TOWN OF LADYSMITH 
   410 Esplanade, PO Box 220 
   Ladysmith, BC V9G 1A2 

   Attention: 
   Facsimile: 

(ii) in the case of a notice to the Property Owner, at: 
 

 
Attention: 
Facsimile: 

or at such other address or addresses as the party to whom such notice or other writing is to be given shall 
have last notified the party giving the same in the manner provided in this section.   

Any notice or other writing sent in compliance with this section shall be deemed to have been given and 
received on the day it is given unless that day is not a Business Day, in which case the notice shall be 
deemed to have been given and received on the next day that is a Business Day.  In this section, "Business 
Day" means any day other than Saturday, Sunday, any statutory holiday in the Province of British 
Columbia or any day on which banks generally are not open for business in Ladysmith, British Columbia. 

14. No Assignment – The Property Owner may not assign its interest in this Agreement except to a 
subsequent owner in fee simple of the Property.  

15. Severance - If any portion of this Agreement is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, 
the invalid portion shall be severed and the decision that it is invalid shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of this Agreement. 

16. Interpretation - Wherever the singular or masculine is used in this Agreement, the same shall be 
construed as meaning the plural, the feminine or body corporate where the context or the parties thereto 
so required. 

17. Further Assurances - The parties hereto shall execute and do all such further deeds, acts, things 
and assurances that may be reasonably required to carry out the intent of this Agreement. 

18. Waiver - Waiver by the Town of a default by the Property Owner shall be in writing and shall 
not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent or other default. 

19. Powers Preserved - This Agreement does not 

(a) affect or limit the discretion, rights or powers of the Town under any enactment (as 
defined in the Interpretation Act, R.S.B.C. 1979, c.206, on the reference date of this 
Agreement) or at common law, including in relation to the use or subdivision of the 
Land; 

(b) affect or limit any enactment relating to the use or subdivision of the Property, or 

181818



 

 

6  

 

(c) relieve the Property Owner from complying with any enactment, including in relation to 
the use or subdivision of the Property, and without limitation shall not confer directly or 
indirectly any exemption or right of set-off from development cost charges, connection 
charges application fees, user fees or other rates, levies and charges payable under any 
bylaw of the Town. 

20. References - Every reference to each party is deemed to include the heirs, executors, 
administrators, personal representatives, successors, assigns, servants, employees, agents, contractors, 
officers, licensees and invitees of such party, wherever the context so requires or allows.  

21. Enurement - This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto 
and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first 
above written. 

Signed, Sealed and Delivered by the  
TOWN OF LADYSMITH by its  
authorized signatories: 
 
 
       
Mayor: 
 
 
       
Manager of Corporate Services: 

 

 
Signed, Sealed and Delivered by 
 
by its authorized signatories: 
 
 
       
Name: 
 
 
       
Name: 
 

 

191919



Schedule “D” Bylaw No. 1625  

REVITALIZATION TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

Section 226 of the Community Charter, SBC 2003, c. 26 

In accordance with the Town of Ladysmith Revitalization Tax Exemption Bylaw No. 1625 and in 
accordance with the Revitalization Tax Exemption Agreement dated for reference the ___ day of ___, 
20__ (the “Agreement”) entered into between the Town of Ladysmith (the “Town”) and _____________ 
(the “Owner”), the registered owner(s) of the property described below, this certificate certifies that the 
Property (as defined below) is subject to a revitalization tax exemption in an amount equal to the amount 
of any increase in municipal property taxes which would otherwise be payable as a result of any increase 
in the  assessed value of improvements on the Property, due to the revitalization, (as hereinafter defined) 
between [the calendar year before the commencement of construction of the project] and [the calendar 
year following the calendar year in which this Certificate is issued] (the “Tax Exemption”), subject to the 
maximum aggregate exemption prescribed by the formula in Section 226 (5) (b) of the Community 
Charter.   

The Property to which the Tax Exemption applies is in the Town of Ladysmith and is legally described 
as: PID _______________, Lot __, Block __, District Lot __, Plan _______ (the “Property”). 

The Tax Exemption is for the _ calendar years commencing with the year __________ and ending with 
the year __________. 

The Tax Exemption is provided on the following conditions: 

1. the Owner does not breach any covenant or condition in the Agreement and performs all 
obligations to be performed by the Owner set out in the Agreement; 

2. the Owner has not sold all or any portion of his or her equitable or legal fee simple interest in the 
Property without the transferee taking an assignment of the Agreement, and agreeing to be bound 
by it;  

3. the Owner, or a successor in title to the Owner, has not allowed the property taxes for the 
Property to go into arrears or to become delinquent; 

4. the Owner, or a successor in title to the Owner,  does not apply to amend the Ladysmith Zoning 
Bylaw 1160, as amended, consolidated or replaced from time to time, to rezone the Property from 
its       zoning to any other zone;  

5. the Property is not put to any use that is not permitted in the Downtown Core. 

If any of these conditions are not met then the Council of the Town of Ladysmith may cancel this 
Revitalization Tax Exemption Certificate. If such cancellation occurs, the owner of the property for 
which the certificate was issued will remit to the Town an amount equal to the value of the 
exemption received after the date of the cancellation of the certificate. 

 

202020


	a.  HRAC Agenda 2018.01.18
	i.  2017.11.16 HRAC Meeting Minutes.docx
	Pages from 2017.12.11 MS Agenda



